POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 24th February, 2017

Present:-

Barnsley MBC

Councillor D. Griffin

Doncaster MBC

Councillor J. Healy

Rotherham MBC

Councillor B. Cutts Councillor S. Sansome

Sheffield CC

Councillor T. Hussain (in the Chair) Councillor M. Rooney

Co-opted Members

Mr. A. Carter Mr. S. Chu

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R. Frost (Barnsley MBC), C. McGuinness (Doncaster MBC), J. Drayton and J. Otten (Sheffield CC).

Also in attendance:-

Dr. A. Billings South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner

Mrs M. Buttery Chief Executive – Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner

for South Yorkshire

53. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 7 FEBRUARY 2017

Resolved:-

That, subject to the inclusion of the attendance of the Police and Crime Commissioner for South Yorkshire and Mr Allan Rainford (Chief Finance Officer to the PCC), the minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2017 be approved as a true and correct record.

54. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

55. TO CONSIDER WHETHER THE PRESS AND PUBLIC SHOULD BE EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING DURING CONSIDERATION OF ANY PART OF THE AGENDA

The Chair indicated that there were no items for consideration on the agenda that would require the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting.

56. TO DETERMINE ANY ITEM WHICH THE CHAIRMAN IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY

The Chair indicated that there were no items requiring the urgent consideration of the Panel.

57. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

The Chair reported that no public questions had been submitted for the Panel.

58. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PANEL

The Chair reported that no questions had been received from Panel Members for the Police and Crime Commissioner.

59. SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PLAN 2017/2021

Consideration was given to a new draft of the Police and Crime Plan for the period from 2017-2021, which was presented by the Police and Crime Commissioner for South Yorkshire.

It was reported that the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 made provision for the Commissioner to issue a new plan as soon as possible after elections, in consultation with the Chief Constable and any recommendations from the Police and Crime Panel, to respond to issues and priorities which could emerge during the life of the Plan.

The Commissioner reported that he had listened to the views of a wide range of stakeholders, including community groups, local authorities and the voluntary sector and had identified that all had shared a similar view around wishing to be safe and feel safe. There had been a consensus to retain the existing priorities for South Yorkshire:

- Protecting vulnerable people
- Reducing crime and anti-social behaviour
- Enabling fair treatment

The Commissioner indicated that there had been a recognition of the need to change emphasis in some of the outcomes in order to reflect new and evolving policing and crime demands, identified through consultation with the public and partners, as well as results from needs and threats assessments.

It was reported that the Commissioner had included seven requirements in the plan:

- For South Yorkshire Police to intervene earlier with vulnerable people to prevent them becoming repeat victims or victims of more harmful crime.
- For South Yorkshire Police to work alongside partners, other agencies and the community and voluntary sector to develop a plan showing how they will prevent and protect vulnerable people from further, more harmful crimes.
- For the public of South Yorkshire to be satisfied that their views and opinions on the policing of their local area have been listened to and considered by South Yorkshire Police and they understand the reasoning behind local policing decisions that are made in their community.
- For the public of South Yorkshire to have trust and confidence in the way they contact South Yorkshire Police and when they make contact to be satisfied that they will be listened to, taken seriously and kept informed throughout any investigation, including being told about the result of any action taken.
- For South Yorkshire Police to demonstrate how they will respond to regional and national policing requirements detailed by the Home Secretary in the Strategic Policing Requirement.
- For South Yorkshire Police to demonstrate effective prevention and action to tackle those areas of crime and anti-social behaviour listed in the Strategic Intelligence Assessment (SIA) that have been assessed as Very High Risk.
- To secure an efficient and effective use of resources on behalf of the public of South Yorkshire, ensuring value for money of policing services.

In presenting the Plan for comments by the Panel, the Commissioner reiterated his ambition to remove the silo working approach within South Yorkshire Police and establish a joined up approach to delivering of policing in the force area.

The Panel welcomed the overall presentation of the Plan and were particularly pleased with the style of language used, remarking on the presence of Plain English throughout the document. The priorities and requirements of the Commissioner were also endorsed by Panel Members and the view was expressed that it would be beneficial for the Panel to develop its understanding of the measures of success against the Commissioner's requirements, with a specific focus on how satisfaction and confidence will be measured.

In respect of the requirement to work alongside partners, the Panel referred to the potential for a more centralised approach in the delivery of local policing and the need to communicate and engage with local communities in the introduction of the new neighbourhood policing model. The Commissioner indicated that this was an area that could be looked at further and the language on page 23 of the Plan could be clarified. He reiterated that South Yorkshire Police was redesigning its approach to Neighbourhood Policing, which must involve and engage communities. The Commissioner added that he would urge councillors across the force area to become involved in the conversations developing the approach. It was suggested that the Commissioner could give more thought to how ward councillors across the Force Area could be used an interface for engaging with local communities, for example, through surgeries or other local community events.

A specific query was raised by Councillor B. Cutts in respect of a meeting that had taken place in Rotherham earlier that morning concerning a forthcoming march by the English Defence League (EDL). Councillor Cutts expressed disappointment at the misinformation that had been provided by the Police, despite being pleased at the attempt at engagement between the Police and the Council. In response, the Commissioner indicated that he found it hard to believe that South Yorkshire Police had not communicated with Rotherham MBC, but reiterated that the main point was that, in advance of any protest march, it was important for the police to have a prior dialogue with the community and the local authority.

The Panel indicated that it would like to understand how the plan would translate into action and welcomed the Commissioner's suggestion to receive a paper on the thread between the Police and Crime Plan and the Force's operational plans.

With regard to organisations funded by the Commissioner, the Panel indicated that it would be of interest to understand which organisations had not been successful in their bids or requests for funding. Whilst recognising that this would not be appropriate for inclusion within the Police and Crime Plan, it was felt that it would be useful information for Panel Members to have sight of.

With reference to the opening of the Sexual Assault Referral Centre, Panel Members commented that would be helpful to signpost readers to further information on this important resource.

On page 13 of the plan, the Panel indicated that it would support the inclusion of the words "hate crime" under the heading "Protecting Vulnerable People". Panel Members also noted the absence of narrative to support the requirement in respect of demonstrating effective prevention and action to tackle areas of crime listed in the Strategic Intelligence Assessment.

Panel Members also asserted their support for the Commissioner's intentions with regard to closer working with the Fire Authority in the context of the government's policy of collaboration and integration between Police and Fire Services.

In conclusion, the Panel thanked the Commissioners and his staff for preparing the Plan and fully responding to Members' queries. The Panel recommended that Chief Constable Watson be invited to a future meeting to elaborate further on the development of the Neighbourhood Policing Model.

Resolved:

- 1. That the Police and Crime Commissioner be advised of the Panel's support for the Police and Crime Plan 2017 2021.
- 2. That authority be delegated to the Panel's Support Officer to formally respond and convey the Members' comments to the Police and Crime Commissioner on behalf of the Panel.
- 3. That a report be submitted to a future meeting outlining how the Police and Crime Plan will align to the workforce plan of South Yorkshire Police.
- 4. That Chief Constable Watson be invited to attend a future meeting of the Panel to outline the developing approach to Neighbourhood Policing in South Yorkshire.

60. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO RULES OF PROCEDURE

Consideration was given to a report which proposed an amendment to the Panel's Rules of Procedure to include a protocol in respect of the filming and recording of Panel meetings by the press or public.

It was reported that The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 had permitted entry to meetings of specified local government bodies for the purpose of reporting and to allow the results of reporting to be published or disseminated. As the South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel was a joint committee of the constituent local authorities established under section 28 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, it was covered by the regulations.

The report proposed the adoption of a protocol to give clear advice as to how filming practices which could be construed as disruptive to the purposes of the meeting, for example, audible commentary, moving around causing general disturbance and other potentially intrusive behaviour) could be avoided.

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL - 24/02/17

Resolved:-

- 1. That the report be noted.
- 2. That the Rules of Procedure be amended to incorporate a Protocol as an appendix to make provision for the filming and recording of Panel meetings by the press or public.